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[ DESCRIPTION BeSBE 4

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
X EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED *-ORIGINAL SITE
—GOOD __RUINS X ALTERED —MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
301 Water Street is located between Commerce and South Streets in downtown Baltimore

Just north of the Imner Harbor., The granite building is three stories high and seven
bays wide on the front, Water Street, facade. The front entrance is located slightly
off-center at the third bay from the South Street corner. Each bay is defined by two
pairs of Ionic pilasters, but the projecting entranceway is also defined by a pair of
Ionic Columns, The double wooden doors, the main entrance to the building are recessed
into this classical entranceway, The windows which are located on the first and second
floors are tripurtite and multi-paned with panels defining the floor level which cuts
between the windows. The bay just to the left of the Commerce Street cormer features a
blank entrance and large decorative metal doors set between smaller pilasters and

surmounted by two smaller windows. These doors no longer function as an entrance.

The cornice which separates the second and third floors is auite elaborate and includes
dentils, egg and dart molding.and other ornamental bands. The third floor is defined t
highly decorative arches with keystones., Within the arches are tripartite multi-paned
windows. The cornice which caps the building is highly elaborate. A series of dentils
is surmounted by classical consoles and a series of lionheads. A balustrade ends the
facade.

Both the South Street and Commerce Street elevations are three bays wide and styled
similarly to the front facade. The South Street facade only includes windows, while
a secondary entrance is located along Commerce Street. A simple brick wall is located
at the rear of the building.

The interior of the building has been modernized to a large degree, however according to
a Baltimore Federal brochure fine wood caivings, = marble Tireplace ard mantel, zome

orlginel byace hardware, a period chandelier and a mesiae floor. (in need of restoration)
are extant, The building housed a small banking branch and offices for the bank. It is

now vacant,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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«~ERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—_PREHISTORIC  _ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC _COMMUNITY PLANNING —_LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION
—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION _LAW __SCIENCE
—_1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
__1600-1699 XARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 __ART __ENGINEERING —MUSIC __THEATER
X 1800-1899 XCOMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
X 1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)
__INVENTION
SPECIFICDATES 489) .13 190), BUILDER/ARGHITECT galﬁwin and Pennington E‘I 89h]
arker and Thomas 1904

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Baltimore Federal building is significant as a surviving structure of the
Baltimore Fire, an excellent Renaissance design of two noteworthy architectural
firms and the home of important financial institutions of Baltimore.

301 Water Street was originally the building of the Merchants' National Bank,
This institution was incorporated in 1835 as succesor to the Baltimore Branch
of the United States Bank, which had been established in 1791. It was for
a time Maryland's largest banking institution. From 1913 to 1928 other banks
which were merged with or were absorbed by the Merchants' National Bank included:
+he National Mechanics Bank (1913), First National Bank (1916), National Bank

. Commerce (1921), Second National Bank (1922), and the Citizens National
Bank (1928). After the final merger, the name was permanently changed to
First National Bank which identifies the institution today.

The building was originally designed as an eight story structure by the noted
local architectural fimm of Baldwin and Pennington in 189L. It was built

of dressed granite, molded upon grand proportions, and elegantly embellished -
internally with costly marbles, brass and bronze., It was featured in the
American Architect and Building News of November 18, 1893.(see illustration).
The architects, Baldwin and Pennington, also designed Mount Royal Station

and the Fidelity Building, among other noteworthy local buildings. An 1895
Guidebook stated that the building was "™n a scale of magnificence seldom sur-
passed."

The building was heavily damaged in the Baltimore Fire of 190, which swepted
through 140 acres of the downtown area. However the building was not completed
destroyed and the lower three stories were re-built. It is only one of a handful
of structures which survived the Baltimore Fire. Others include Mercantile

Safe Deposit and Trust Building, the Continental Trust Building, the Equitable
Building and Alexander Brown and Sons.

Some sources cite Baldwin and Pennington were the architects who supervised the

re-building, but a newspaper article of the time states that Parker and Thomas

—ere the architects (see attached article). This seems more likely since Parker
« Thomas are also known to have made further design changes to the interior

in 1916, Parker and Thomas designed many noteworthy buildings in Baltimore

including the B & 0 Office Building, Alexander Brown and Sons and Gilman Hall

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY (continued)
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nMA] OR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

American Architect and Building News, November 18, 1893.

Maryland Institute Scrapbook on the Great Fire.

Baltimore: The 0ld Town and the Modern City, Souvenier of the 9th
convention of the Natiomal Association of Builders, October 15-18, 1895,
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

EUIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Lot 145' x 62' on the south side of Water Street between Commerce Street
and South Street.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY
FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Fred Shoken August, 1982
ORGANIZATION DATE
Commission for Historic and Architectural Preservation
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
Room 601, City Hall, 100 N. lolliday Street

CITY OR TOWN STATE

Raltimore, Maryland 21202

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Significance Continued

of Johns Hopkins University. The drawing of the building shows that the
original plan was to remove the arches on the third floor after the fire
and replace them with double windows, but the arches were retained in the
re-building.

The building was used by the United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
from 1929 until 197h. USF&G is one of Baltimore's largest corporations

and has been an important insurance company not only locally, but nationally
since its founding in 1896,

After remaining vacant for three years, the building was purchased by Baltimore
Federal Savings and Loan. It was restored under the supervision of Ferdinand
P. Xelly and Associates. Baltimore Federal was founded in 188L as the
Pennsylvania Avenue Permanent Building and Loan Association. It is now the
largest Savings and Loan institution in Baltimore.

The building is presently threatened by the construction of a new headquarters
on its site. Recent plans for the building include the retention of the facade
of 301 Water Street into a new high rise structure. It has yet to be determined
how successfully the new building will relate to this excellentlly styled
structure.

1Baltipore= The 01d Town and the Modern City, Souvenier of the ninth
convention of the National Association of Builders, Octover 15-18, 1895,
p. 131.




The sbovs s & pleture of the Merchaots'
Natlonal Bank Bulldlog, Soath and Water
streets, af It will appear after belng re-
butlt. It was decided to reduce the helght
of the atructure by cutting off thefive upper
stories, that had Deen used as offices, and
bave above the baokiag room only ome
foor divided into offices.

The rontract for reconstructing the hank
has been awarded to the Weils Hros (om-
pany, and the work will soon commence,

The r!hulldlng_l_a_ m_bgﬁnlnod by January

M.

Cn S AAC

MERCHANTS' NATIONAL BANK BUILDING

1, 1804, The adifice wan erected ln 1804
of Vermont granlte at n cost of $560.000,

The Insurance was adjusted by arbitra-
tion without the loss of a dollar to the
bank. The tatal losurapce carried was
$433,000, and 'n the settlemept the hank
recelved g little over 220,000, which fully
covered the loag euataioed by the five. The
lzand upon which the bullding stands cost
$145.000, The bank also got $16.300 In
pavment of a rent pollcy.

Mr. Douglas H. Thomas, president of the

o Lrupbbb\,;_

bank, sald that s neither firs, smoks nor
water entered the banking room proper Its
furnitare and appointments suffsred ooly
from dust, etc., and but & portion of a §13,-
000 policy covering the furnishings was
collected. The redabliltation of the lower
storfes, It in sald, will cost little more
thaos will probably be recelved from the
nale of murplus gronite, steel, #ic., faken
trom the fve upper stories rbat will be re-
moved.

The plans provife for converiing the

entire main Soor inte 4

which will take iy the gee ¥

end that was previousyy

on Water street and bu
along Booth srreet.

The bank is pow b
St Paul's Parish Hosss 8¢
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The Burnt Dictricst

8-%37
The general area located just eact of Charles Center, north of the Inner
Harbor, west of the Jones Falls and south of Lexington and Fayette Streets
has a strong potential for being designated as a historic district (see .
attached map). This is the surviving section of the area, once called the
Burnt district. It was destroyed in the Baltimore Fire of 190, but
quickly rebuilt. A map from 1906 shows the degree to which this area was

built-up a couple of years after the devastating fire.

The area is significant because it contains all but one of the surviving
structures from the Baltimore Fire and includes the city's finest bank
buildings, early high rise office structures and the finest early twentieth
century architecture in Baltimore. It is a distinctive area completely rebuilt
within a short time period ¢.190L-1920 and containing the last great period of
classical design of important financial, commercial and institutional structures
before modern architecture changed the appearance of downtown Baltimore with the

development of Charles Center and the Inner Harbor.

Within this area are the city's most important institutions. It includes a
variety of building types since it was not only the financial heart of the city,
but important in industry (especially close to the harbor), entertainment (the
Block), Wholesaling (Market Place and the Fish Market) and retail trade (Baltimore
Street). Few new intrusions, both new building and vacant lots, are located in
this area. It retains a strong, early twentieth century, Classical appearance,

with many significant streetscapes (most notably Redwood Street).

The area defined on the map includes the area affected by the Baltimore Fire. The
fire actually covered a larger area, but large sections have been completely
rebuilt with the Charles Center and Inner Harbor developments. Also some new
construction on the edges of the Burnt district, such as the Police Headauarters,
INA Building, and MECU Building, war excluded from the district as being out of
character with the area, The Courthouse and City Hall are also excluded since
they were not affected by the fire and constitute a district within themselves

as the governmental center of the city.

37-39 South Street; 301310 East Lombard Street

Berides 301 Water Street, most of the remaining buildings in the block defined
by Water, Commerce, Lombard and South Streets contribute to the concept of a

"Burnt District" hi-toric district, with the exception of the small parking



garage at 33 South Street. Tne ¢ brick buildings generally relate to the
commercial/industrial character of the district rince they are only one
hlock from the harbor.

308-310 East Lombard Street is the most notable building. It is a five story
brick building with arches on the upper floor, stone lintels with accented
key and end stones, stone sille, a large metal cornice and fan decorations on
the large tripartite windows on Lombard Street. The architect was Henry J.
Tinley, and it was built in 1905.

306 East Lombard Street is a fairly simple addition to 308-310 East Lombard
Street, but with less dignified proportions and little ornamentation.

30)l; East Lombard Street has been altered to a large degree. The cornice has
been removed and the large archway has been modified. An early photograph
shows the original conditions of this building.

39 South Street is a fairly simple 3 story brick structure with some stone
diamond shape designs, It was probably built in the 1910's, This building is
not scheduled for demolition.

37 South Street is a two story building with decorative light brown brick
work. Similar in some ways to 39 South Street, it also dates from ¢.1910.

B-36%7
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3OY E LoreARD

1.26387

FIRST BUILDING ON EXCHANGE PLACE

The above structure is located al Wi Exchange Place, lnd s now occupled
by Mr. Bowman firay. tobacconist. It is the firet buibdl be

on Exchangs Place. The struciure was staried Aprfl W tnd rompleted Au-
guat L 1t is four stories high, owned by Mr. J. Morite, and was bullt by
Mr, Frank Foxr

MD. INSTATUTE sc.n.nu%oog
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306 Bast Lombard Street
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308-310 East Lombard Street --

308-10 East Lombard Street

Commerce Street elevation
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B-3687

Merchants & Mechanics National Bank (Baltimore Federal Inner Harbor Office)

301 Water Street (also 37-39 South Street and 304-310 E. Lombard Street)
Sanborn Maps
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B-3687
Merchants & Mechanics National Bank
(Baltimore Federal Inner Harbor Office, USF&G)

301 Water Street, 37-39 South Street, and 304-310 E. Lombard Street

Demolished
Block 1370, Lot 001
Baltimore City
Baltimore East Quad.
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